RFP No. 08HQSS0017

Amendment No. 0001

Page 11 of 15

RFP No. 08HQSS0017 is hereby amended as follows:

1. SF33, Block 9

The proposal due date is hereby extended, as follows:

Amend “Monday, May 15, 2008” to read “Thursday, May 22, 2008”

NOTE: The Inquiry date for question submission is NOT extended. 

2. Section F, Page F-2, F.4 Meetings, Reports and Other Deliverables, Mission Plans (chart), CDRL MP001- Project Management Plan

Delete the 1st and 2nd paragraphs under “Description” in its entirety and insert the following thereof: 

The Draft and Final Plans provide an overview of the Flight Operations Team management processes and the schedule and activities required to achieve operational readiness. It includes the plans and processes for quality assurance and continuous improvement. 

The plan shall also include a comprehensive approach to EVM, including

3. Section I (Page I-1)

Delete in its entirety FAR 52.211-11 Liquidated Damages

4.  Delete Attachment 4 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SECURITY REQUIREMENTS SUMMARY in its entirety and insert the following in lieu thereof.

Revised Attachment 4 is hereby attached under separate copy.
5. Section L, L.11.3, Page L-10, Volume III, Cost Proposal 

Delete the first sentence in its entirety and insert the following in lieu thereof:

There is no page limitation for the Cost Proposal. 

6. Section L, L.11 GS2150  PROPOSAL FORMAT AND SUBMISSION INSTRUCTIONS (5) Technical Proposal 

Delete the following from the section, as follows: Note: The technical proposal shall be no more than 45 pages (including cover page, table of contents, listing of table, drawings, and/or exhibits, if any, and short introduction or summary describing the overall approach, if desired.

7. In accordance with L.6 Inquiries, Section L, the following questions and answers are submitted to all potential offerors:

Question:

SF-33 

Block 9 states that proposals are due 12:00pm Eastern Time on Monday, May 15th. Please confirm this should read, Thursday, May 15th. 

Answer: Thursday May 15th 

NOTE: THE RFP DUE DATE HAS BEEN EXTENDED UNTIL MAY 22, 2008.

Question:

Sec C, Pg. C-6 

Industry day information and the Solicitation schedule for the duration of time between launch and handover to the EROS MOC differ significantly. Please confirm that it is expected, as shown in the schedule on page C-6 of Section C, that this duration is 16 months. Please also indicate whether the USGS would accept alternate solutions to reaching 8x5 operations. 

Answer: Per Section C. Reaching 8X5 Operations sooner would be acceptable. 

Question:

Sec F.4, Pg. F-2 

Sec L.11.2(2), 

Pg. L-9 

The Solicitation requires the submission of a draft Program Management Plan (PMP) as part of Volume II - Technical Proposal. Since the Technical Proposal shall not exceed 45 pages, it is requested that the PMP be exclusive of this 45 page count so that the offeror can provide the required information within the page limitation of Volume II. 

Answer: Request Denied. 

Question: 

Sec L.11(5), Pg. L-6 

Sec.L.11.2, Pg. L-8 

Paragraph L.11(5) states the Technical Proposal shall be no more than 45 pages (including cover page, table of contents, listing of table, drawings and/or exhibits, and summary). However, Paragraph L.11.2 states the technical proposal shall not exceed 45 pages, and further states “the page limitation excludes the identifying cover page, table of contents, listing(s) of tables, drawings and/or exhibits and summary. Please clarify.
Answer:

It excludes the Listing of the aforementioned items, not the items themselves. 

Question: The RFP states on page L-6, paragraph number (6), that we are to submit a Travel Plan Proposal (original and 6 copies) and it also states on page L-11, paragraph number (3) to include proposed travel in the Cost Proposal. Do you want a complete breakout of proposed travel submitted twice or just in one of the two sections of the proposal? Can you please clarify?

Answer: Only once in the Cost Volume

Question: The RFP states on page L-6, paragraph number (7) that we are to submit a Statement of Exceptions and Conditions (original and 6 copies) and it also states on page L-7, paragraph letter (d) to include Assumptions, Conditions, or Exceptions in the Business Management Volume. Should we submit the Statement of Exceptions and Conditions twice or just in one of the two sections of the proposal? Can you please clarify?

Answer: Submit in the Business Management Volume.

Question: Reference page C-6, paragraph 1.6, Mission Success; can you please confirm the dates for Handover and 8x5 Operations?

Answer:  The dates shown are a notional schedule for LDCM activities.  This schedule is provided only to facilitate responding to this requirement and is subject to change.

Question: 

Section C, Paragraph 5.8

The role of the FOT is described in more detail in the LDCM Integration and Test Plan”. Can you provide access to this plan?

Answer: The LDCM Integration and Test Plan referenced on C-19 will not be available until after the FOT award date. For proposal purposes, bidders should assume that the LDCM project will use industry-standard I&T processes and the FOT will fill the roles outlined in 5.9. Any assumptions bidders make on the FOT support to I&T (such as level of effort, required skills, schedule, etc.) should be explicitly noted in the response.

Question: 

Section L, Paragraphs L-11.2 and L.11(5)

The paragraphs give conflicting direction on what is included/ excluded in the 45-page limitation for technical volume. Please clarify.

Answer:

Change L.11 (5) – Remove the Note: “Note: The technical proposal shall be no more than 45 pages (including cover page, table of contents, listing of table, drawings, and/or exhibits, if any, and short introduction or summary describing the overall approach, if desired” 

Question: 

Section L.11.2, Paragraph 1

Can past performance information be included beyond the “Past Performance/Past Performance Reference Form”?

Answer: 

You can submit more than the (3) required past performance references via Attachment 2 but the technical proposal must be no more than 45 pages. For clarification purposes, Attachment 2 sheets are NOT included in the 45 page technical proposal limitation. 

Question:

Requirement FOT 235

The requirement states that all times during the execution of the contract, the contractor shall be compliant with COMSEC security requirements. Please identify the number of people that will need to the cleared to TS/SCI level, and the period in which the clearance will be needed. 

Answer:

The Contractor shall comply will all communication security (COMSEC) requirements related to the operation of Caribou encryption/decryption equipment as detailed in the National Security Agency (NSA)/ Central Security Services (CSS) Policy Manual No. 3-16 Issued, 5 August, 2005. This does not require TS/SCI clearances US Citizenship and an NSA COMSEC briefing will be required for any FOT members who will have the responsibility to manage the Caribou encryption devices. The Caribou equipment will be provided by the MOE contractor. 

Question: 

SF-33 

Block 9 states that proposals are due 12:00pm Eastern Time on Monday, May 15th. Please confirm this should read, Thursday, May 15th.

Answer: Thursday May 15th 

NOTE: THE RFP DUE DATE IS EXTENDED TO THURSDAY, MAY 22, 2008, AS NOTED ABOVE

Question: 
Sec C, Pg. C-6 

Industry day information and the Solicitation schedule for the duration of time between launch and handover to the EROS MOC differ significantly. Please confirm that it is expected, as shown in the schedule on page C-6 of Section C, that this duration is 16 

months. Please also indicate whether the USGS would accept alternate solutions to reaching 8x5 operations. 

Answer: Per Section C. Reaching 8X5 Operations sooner would be acceptable. 

Question: [Contractor] hereby respectfully requests that the requirement for proposed ceiling rates on indirect costs be deleted from this contract and be replaced by an award fee performance metric, whereby the contractor’s award fee score is partially determined based upon cost management. 

Answer: Thank you for the request but the contract type shall remain cost plus fixed fee. Furthermore, ceiling rates are required but only limited to the contractor’s discretion and may be subject to negotiations prior to award. 

Question: Access to the following documents requested:  
1. DOI System Development Life Cycle
2. DOI SDLC Security Integration Guide (SDLC)
3. DOI Certification of Accreditation Guides/Templates Referred to on Page J-4-3
4. DOI Security Test & Evaluation (ST&E) Guide
5. DOI Privacy Impact Assessment
6. DOI Computer Incident Response Guide
7. DOI Asset Valuation Guide
8. DOI Contingency Plan Guide
9. EROS Continuity of Operations Plan(s)
10. USGS IT Security Requirements
11. LDCM I&T Plan Referred to on Page C-19

Answer:  

The LDCM Integration and Test Plan referenced on C-19 will not be available until after the FOT award date.  For proposal purposes, bidders should assume that the LDCM project will use industry-standard I&T processes and the FOT will fill the roles outlined in 5.9.  Any assumptions bidders make on the the FOT support to I&T (such as level of effort, required skills, schedule, etc.) should be explicitly noted in the response.  

There are no USGS IT Security requirements beyond those referenced in 2.1 (g)-(j).

NOTE: SEE REVISED ATTACHMENT 4.
Question: 

Section C, 1.6 Mission Phases

Section C, 1.6 and 7.2 Mission Phases/ Observatory Operations

Section C, 1.6 and F.4 Mission Phases/ Mission Procedures

Various LDCM Program documentation identifies Handover 90-days after Launch.  The dates in the table indicate otherwise.    Please clarify duration of L&EO/Commissioning Phase and timing of milestone for Handover.

	Table indicates 8x5 Automated Operations within 6 months on Handover. Section 7.2 specifies within 9 months of Commissioning.  Please clarify requirement. 

Several deliverable have due dates relative to the following milestones/events that are not defined. GRT, MRT TRR, Mission Simulation TRR, Mission Simulation Start-Request Dates for these events for planning purposes. 

Answer: Commissioning spans from Launch to On Orbit Verification, which occurs at L+90 days. Handover is immediately after Verification. Automation is required at Handover plus 6 Months, or the start of Commissioning (Launch) plus 9 months

GRT, MRT and Mission Simulations are each a sequence of tests that span the times shown 1.6.  The TRR for each sub-test takes place before the "run for record".  For planning purposes, bidders may assume that TRR is midway between the start and end of each activity.  For planning purpose bidders may assume that Mission Simulations will run from 5/11 to 7/11.

Question:

Section C, 7.15 - 9.3 and 9.4 EROS MOC and bMOC Sustaining Engineering / MOC Sustaining Engineering and Hardware

The Goddard MOC appears to be excluded from FOT Contractor sustaining engineering support, Government-provided Hardware refresh, and partially from Government-provided sustaining engineering (basic System Administration) during the 6-month period from Beginning of Operations to Goddard MOC decommissioning

Is this the government’s intent? Please clarify.

Reference text/requirements:

7.15 EROS MOC and bMOC Sustaining Engineering

[FOT188} The FOT Contractor shall operate and manage the hardware and software at the EROS MOC and bMOC.

[FOT189]  All EROS MOC and bMOC sustaining engineering functions…

9.3 (see 4th bullet)

· Basic system administration of EROS MOC and bMOC systems, such as applying operation system patches, maintaining user logins, performing backups, etc. 

9.4 (last paragraph)

The Government will provide technology refresh of all hardware associated with the EROS MOC and bMOC as necessary.

Answer: Yes, That is the intent.  This is a temporary launch MOC facility.

Question: 

Section C, 9.4

Hardware

3rd paragraph states, “The Government will provide the maintenance of all hardware associated with the LDCM Primary and backup Mission Operations Centers.”

Please clarify requirement. Is requirement intended to apply to Goddard MOC, EROS MOC, and bMOC?

Answer: Yes, the Government will provide maintenance (through other contractors) for all 3 MOC locations.

Question: 

Section C, 7.13
Spacecraft Flight Software Sustaining Engineering

Does the MOC-located Flight Software Maintenance equipment and tools to be maintained by the FOT Contractor include:

-   The Spacecraft Contractor-provided  FSW maintenance equipment and/or

-   The MOE Contactor-provided Memory Management Mechanisms as part of the MOE System for FSW maintenance

or is the requirement limited to FOT Contractor developed equipment/tools used for FSW maintenance?

If Spacecraft Contactor or MOE Contractor equipment, then please identify systems and functions.

Ref:  [FOT186] The FOT Contractor shall maintain any necessary MOC-located FSW equipment, tools, and products.

Answer: The Spacecraft Contractor will provide FSW maintenance for LDCM.  Neither the Spacecraft Contractor nor the MOE Contractor will deliver FSW maintenance tools to the FOT.  The intent of [FOT186] is that the FOT Contractor shall maintain any tools developed by the FOT contractor to aid in the FSW-related tasks defined in [FOT179]-[FOT185].  If the Government adds additional responsibility for FSW maintenance to the FOT, this contract will be modified accordingly.

Question: 

Section C, 9.3

MOC Sustaining Engineering

What is the scope and content of the IT Security provided by the Government (in light of the FOT Contactor’s Security Requirements in Section 3.7)?  

Does the Government cover:

-   provision and sustainment of physical and electronic security systems and measures to provide and IT secure operations environment (maintenance of firewalls, physical access control, etc)

-   IT Security planning and engineering for MOC systems implementation, enhancements, and re-engineering

-   Other?

Answer: The systems that the FOT will be required to operate will be maintained by the government.  The facility for the MOC will be maintained by the government and controlled access will be provided.  It is also the intent of the government to provide IT Security for MOC systems.   However, support for security planning and engineering for MOC systems implementation, enhancements, and re-engineering will be required of the FOT.

Question:

Section F
CDRL MP001

The description of this plan jumps from “The plan provides an overview of the … to the draft … to the plan also demonstrates compliance …USGS’s IT Security Requirements and includes background investigations and completed government forms.”

Does the draft PMP Plan include all of the requirements requested in the description?

If so, are the background investigations and completed government forms included in the page count?

Answer: Change the first Sentence in the Description from "This plan provides..." to "The Draft and Final Plans provide ...".  Also, remove "draft" in front of the EVM paragraph.   Change "The draft plan shall also include a comprehensive approach to EVM, including …" to "The plan shall also include a comprehensive approach to EVM, including …".
It is the intent of the government to require an overview discussion of the Project Management Approach with specific government required details after award.  Those items that reference "Draft" are required for the draft submission.

Question: 

F.2

Term of the Contract

This clause assumes a contract start date of June 1, 2008.  Given the proposal due date of May 15, 2008, this date appears to be aggressive and will not provide the Government with realistic pricing estimates.  

Recommend that the start date be changed to July 1, 2008 (or later).

Answer: Change this to read "No earlier than July 1"?

Question: 

F.3

Place of Performance

F.3 states the secondary places of performance include spacecraft vendor’s facility, instrument vendor’s facility and MOE’s vendor facility.

How should contractors plan travel to those locations, which are unknown at this time. Is there a plug number?

Answer: The MOE Vendors facility is unknown at this time.  There is no "plug number".  However, NASA has awarded the instrument contract to Ball Aerospace in Boulder, CO and the Spacecraft Contract to General Dynamics Advanced Information Systems in Phoenix , AZ.

Question: 

F.8

EVMS

Section F.8 states the contractor shall utilize an EVM system certified by the Chief Information Officer of DOI.  Will a Defense contract Management Agency (DCMA) Earned Value Advance Agreement meet the requirement for a certified Earned Value Management system for the Department of Interior?

If the DCMA Advance Agreement (AA) is acceptable, and the company’s AA requires an Implementation Review by DCMA at any new site or site without a previous validation, who will perform the review – DCMA or DOI?  

Note: The EROS-TSSC contract had the same requirement and a question was posed that USGS responded in Amendment #4 question #164 that DCMA is acceptable as certifying an EVMS and DOI will conduct the Implementation Review.

Answer: An advance agreement with DCMA will meet the requirement for a certified EVM System.  The Implementation Review will be performed by DOI (or DOI will delegate to the USGS).

Question: 

H.3 & H.4

Key Personnel & Substitution of Personnel

Is it correct to assume that H.4 applies only to the Key Personnel identified in H.3?

Answer: Yes

Question: 

H.17.1

Management of Government Furnished Property 

Paragraph states, “The Contractor assumes responsibility for repair, upgrade, and replacement of all GFP transferred to the Contractor.”

This is inconsistent with SOW Section C, 9 GFE. Please clarify.

Answer: There are no plans to transfer property to the contractor.  This is a boilerplate required clause for government property transferred to the contractor.  GFE will be provided for use by the FOT, not GFP.  GFE that is transferred to a contractor becomes GFP.  

Question: 

H.27.d.1

Security Clearance Levels

H.27.d.1 states that the contractor may be required to provide employees with security clearances that will be identified by the Government.

Please clarify, other than background checks, what additional clearance levels, such as Secret, Top Secret, TSSCI, etc. are required.

Answer: US Citizenship and an NSA COMSEC briefing will be required for any FOT members who will have the responsibility to manage the Caribou encryption devices.  

Question:

H 27.d.1

Security Clearance Levels

Who will cover the costs of security investigations?

Answer: If required in the future the government will need to cover the cost of the security investigations.

Question: 

I.1

52.211-11 Liquidated Damages

In accordance with FAR 11.503, this clause is specifically prescribed for fixed-price solicitations or contracts and therefore not applicable to a  cost plus fixed fee contract.

Recommend deletion of this clause.

Answer:

This will be deleted from Section I. 

Question: 

L.11

Proposal Format and Submission Requirements

Please clarify the subparagraphs (1) through (7) under paragraph (b). They appear to be duplicated requirements to Section L.11.1 and are not representative of the “offerors information and submission must be organized by Volume as indicated below.”

Recommend deletion of the subparagraphs (1) through (7) under paragraph (b).

Answer:

Agreed, remove subparagraphs (1) to (7) under paragraph (b).  

NOTE: Subparagraphs 1-7 represent the list and number of copies for each submission. This is not being eliminated from the solicitation. 
Question: 

L.11.1

Volume I, Business Mgmt proposal

If the offeror completes section 14, Acknowledgement of Amendments, on the SF33, is the requirement to provide signed copies of the actual Amendments required?

Answer: If the offeror completes section 14, acknowledgement of amendments on the SF33 there is no further requirement to provide signed copies of the amendments.

Question: 

L.11.3

Volume III Cost Proposal

Reference to no page limitation identifies the Business Management Volume.

Should the reference of the no page limitation apply to Volume III Cost Proposal?

Answer: Yes, Change "Business Management" to "Cost Management" in the first Sentence of L.11.3.

Question: 

L.11.3(d)(2)

Volume III Cost Proposal

Para. State”…include details of subcontractor costs in the same format as the prime contractor’s costs.”  

Due to the proprietary nature of subcontractors pricing information can the Government confirm that this instruction is referring to the subcontractor sealed packages? If not, can the Government please elaborate on what details it expects in the Prime offeror’s submission relating to subcontractors.

Answer: Refers to the subcontractors sealed packages.

Question:

11.3(d)(2)
Volume III Cost Proposal

Para. State”…include details of subcontractor costs in the same format as the prime contractor’s costs.”  

Is the Governments intent that this level of detail is for all subs regardless of size, or would this apply to major subcontracts over a certain value/effort of the total contract?

Answer: Applies to all subcontractors.
Question: How many copies of Volume III, Cost Proposal are required?
Answer: An Original and 6 copies of the Cost proposal are required.

Question: SOW section 3.7, FOT 209 states, “The FOT Contractor shall support a Certification and Accreditation (C&A) Review of the LDCM ground system pre-launch, and every three years or as required thereafter.” However, section J, Attachment 4, para 10. States, “10.  Certification & Accreditation -- The contractor will perform Certification and Accreditation (C&A) services on the application developed or maintained hereunder prior to going into production.  The application must be re-accredited every three years or whenever there is a major change that affects security.  C&A documents will be provided to the COR in both hard copy and electron forms.  The contractor must follow NIST SP 800-37, 800-18, 800-30, 800-60 800-53A, Federal Information Processing Standard (FIPS) 199 and 200, the associated DOI guides/templates, the DOI Security Test & Evaluation (ST&E) Guide, and the DOI Privacy Impact Assessment.  NIST documents are available on the Internet at http://csrc.nist.gov/publications/nistpubs/ <http://csrc.nist.gov/publications/nistpubs/> .  FIPS documents are available the internet at http://csrc.nist.gov/publications/nistpubs <http://csrc.nist.gov/publications/nistpubs> .  The contractor may request copies of DOI documents by contacting the Contracting Officer.”

The difference between “supporting Certification and Accreditation (C&A) Review” and “performing Certification and Accreditation (C&A) services on the application developed or maintained hereunder prior to going into production” is vast. Please clarify what is required of the contractor regarding C&A.

Answer: Support of the C&A Process is required for all work.  Performance of the C&A Process is only applicable to those systems developed or maintained (suggest changing "maintained" to "modified") by the FOT.  

Question:  

RFP section L.11. GS2150 Proposal Format and Submission Instructions (b) (5) states, (5) Technical Proposal (See L.11.1 Volume II, Technical Proposal -- Original and [6] copies;

Note: The technical proposal shall be no more than 45 pages (including cover page, table of contents, listing of table, drawings, and/or exhibits, if any, and short introduction or summary describing the overall approach, if desired.” However, RFP section L.11.2,  Volume II, Technical Proposal states, “The technical proposal shall not exceed forty-five (45) pages.  The use of charts, graphs, tables and illustrations are encouraged.  However, unless otherwise stated, the charts, graphs, tables, and illustrations are included within the limitation.  A page is defined Times New Roman Font Size 12, single spaced, single-side, 8½ x 11 (no exceptions allowed).  However, tables, charts and figures may use a font size other than point 12 as long as it is legible.  The page limitation excludes the identifying cover page, table of contents, listing(s) of tables, drawings, and/or exhibits, if any, the short introduction or summary describing the overall approach; the past performance information, and resumes.  Any information submitted in excess of the page limit will not be evaluated.”

Answer: Charts, graphs, tables, and illustrations are included within the 45 page limitation.  The listing (i.e. Table of Contents page identifying where in the 45 pages those charts, graphs, tables, and illustrations reside) is excluded.

Question: What format should offerors use to submit resumes? 

Answer:  Any legible format for resumes is acceptable.

Question: Section M.4.2.1.1.e (page M-2), states, “The Quality Assurance Plan will be evaluated to assess the reasonability, attainability, and level of challenge identified pertaining to the quality controls, measurements, logistics, surveillance methods, and reporting.  Emphasis will be place on creativity, innovation, and added value to ensuring overall success of this effort” Please provide additional details of the quality assurance evaluation criteria: Logistics. In what manner is logistics quality assurance involved with LDCM?  Are there any customer metrics?

Answer: "Logistics" in this context refers to the ability of the contractor to perform successfully on a contract with dispersed locations as identified in the RFP.    The contractor should address any logistics issues with delivering a quality product.
Question: The FOT SOW 5.3 MOE Contractor Support states “The engineering personnel from the FOT will actively participate in the MOE development, test and acquisition process.” Has the government made an OCI determination as to whether the (not yet awarded) MOE contractor or subcontractor can participate as a prime or subcontractor on the FOT contract?

The MOE is a not yet an awarded procurement. MOE is a NASA/Goddard issued Solicitation No. 4200180412.

Answer:  Since the MEO award has not been made, that determination should be made by the NASA CO. 

Question: Please clarify the intent of the all CDRL deliverables vs. proposal requirements since there seems to be duplication of section L7M requirements and CDRL requirements. For example, L.11.2 Vol II Technical Proposal, Section 2 states that this section shall include CDRL MP001 Program Management Plan and CDRL MP002 Work Breakdown structure. Are the CDRLs Deliverables included in the proposal page limitations of 45 pages?

Answer: The CDRL Deliveries of: CDRL MP001-Program Management Plan and CDRL MP002- Work Breakdown Structure are included in the page limitation and are excepted at proposal submission time. They are specifically called out as being part of the Technical Proposal. Section F identifies the Draft (i.e. Proposal Response) requirements for those CDRL’s. 

Question: “The completion dates for implementation of the bMOC and automation of operations now coincide-is that the government’s intent? (Pls. reference the language from the Statement of Work provided below in support of our follow-on question).

[FOT222] Within six months of the beginning of operations, the FOT Contractor shall integrate, test and validate operational readiness of the bMOC in accordance with the bMOC Operational Readiness Plan (CDRL MP015) as described in Section F.

[FOT139] Within nine months of commissioning, the FOT Contractor shall develop the necessary scripts, procedures and concept of operations to reduce observatory operations to an 8 hour per day, five day per week staffing profile.
Answer: Both Requirements are correct and that is indeed the government’s intent.


